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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary
(“the Group”). The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ER®E

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year under review, the Group has spent significant efforts
on further promoting its core products, namely Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEBZB3) and Compound Huonaoshu capsule (1877
SEISATIZEE). As a result, the total turnover of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was RMB601,715,000, representing
a sharp increase of 31% as compared with RMB457,746,000 for
the previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB132,785,000 from RMB79,274,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2014, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB23.70 cents from RMB14.15 cents last year.

The notable achievements in 2014 were the results of joint effort
of our staff at all levels. In fact, the Board of Directors has already
expressed its optimistic view for 2014’s profitability in the 2013
annual report. As such, the Board would like to share its view on the
Company’s competitive edges with shareholders since these edges
would allow the Company to achieve further success in the coming
years.

Firstly, basing on the sales growth of one single product, namely,
the Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 EEB %) as our target; and
through adapting innovative development as the guideline, academic
promotion as the means, increase sales operation quality as the
focus as well as ensuring clinical sales, we increased the sales
of Compound Huonaoshu capsule (187 /5457 B2 %). Meanwhile,
we continued to make efforts on the production and marketing of
injecting drugs, including Edaravone injection (#kZEH 2= §7/%), and
other products subject to business solicitation, and speed up the
development of unexplored new markets to further improve our sales.

Secondly, we set aside a dedicated fund and actively organised and
participated in various academic promotions in relation to nephrology
at state level, and held specially designed product promotion
meetings in targeted hospitals at provincial, city and district levels in
the country, thereby achieving continued growth in product sales. At
the same time, we communicated directly with frontline staffs through
these activities so that we could carry out research and development
more efficiently, and understand the market conditions better.
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Thirdly, our production lines, including No. One solid dosage capsule
production workshop, No. Three solid dosage pills (concentrated
pills) production workshop and the production line for bulk drug
(fucoidan), had obtained the new version of Good Manufacturing
Practice Certificate during the year. Meanwhile, we have made efforts
in business solicitation for the solid dosage non-mainline products
produced by the No. Three workshop and also in the tender of basic
drug in order to diversify the development of the Company while
exerting efforts in exploring and developing more mainline products.

Lastly, the Company passed the review of “national high-tech
enterprise” in July 2012, and Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (8 & & Z B 5)
was named “Branded Products”.

Looking ahead, we will take the launch of our new plant as an
opportunity to enhance our work on management and sales in every
segment. We will adhere to our business philosophy, that is, focusing
on “technological innovation and serving the public” in the course of
globalization, and endeavour in the pursuit of health for people around
the world, with the ultimate goal to achieve rapid growth and create a
brighter future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2014 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover
increased to RMB601,715,000 from approximately RMB457,746,000
while the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB132,785,000 from RMB79,274,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB23.70 cents from RMB14.15 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (8 R & =B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue. The medicine of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule has
penetrated into the market, the sales of 2014 rose as expected. Details
of which were further elaborated under the Section “Financial Review”.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets (FAl) - valid until 8 August 2015
2. Capsules (I ZHI) - valid until 8 August 2015

3. Sterile Bulk (Cefalotin sodium, Cefpiramide) (& R} 2% (58 18 18
Wyéh « SEFEUCAZ )) - valid until 8 August 2015

4. Pills (Water Pills), Membrane (LE(7k}) ~ BRAE]) - valid until 8
August 2015

5. Powder for injection (Cephalosporins) (3878 & &= 58 #T &) — valid
until 29 December 2018

6. Lyophilized powder for injection (RE ¥ #H#I) — valid until 29
December 2018

7. Small volume Parenteral Solution (/N& & 51 %l) — valid until 29
December 2018

8.  Sterile Bulk (Yan Suan Tou Bao Jia Tong) (& [Rf} %5 (B EL 58
R A5)), Bulk (Edaravone) (JR#H25) (kR Z) — valid until 17
October 2018

9.  Bulk drug (Fucoidan, Extractum for fructus gardeniae) R ¥} %5 (18
BZAERGEE - FETIEEUY) - valid unit 31 December 2015

XKERE
HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HBItFE K&
E2EERHARELS7,746,000TEMNEAR
#601,715,0007T - R FEA QR KERFE A
FE(GSH R BB ARKT79,274,000T# e AR
132,785,000 - HE-Z—MWE+_A=+—
BIEFEE  SREABANHREFZ ARE14.15
nEREARKE23.70% ©

HEZZT-—WNF+_A=+—HIFE [BE
BEREINEEMHEHBERASENZ LN
AKR - BEBEBEDZATS R -T2 —N
FHEREIARNER  FERIPEEE]—
e R o

& E IR

[8 B 8% R (GMP)
BE-F—WEL=A=+—ALFE  AAT
ER T HIBIR # SGMPIRE -

1. HE-BRE-T—HE/\ANE

2. EEEA-ARE-T—AF/\A)\A

3. ERERZECEmEL - BHICK)—F
WE-_FE—RFN\ANH

4. ABOKR) RE-BRE_F—RFN
EPAN=|

5. HEBARXENHBE-EREZE_ZE—NF
+=ZA=+NAH

6. REHUHB-BARE_ZT—N\E+=A
—+hH

7. NREFFH-BREZZE-NF+A
—+NH

8. MERMEE(EEEMATS) REZE(K
ENE)-ARE_ZE-N\Ft+A+LR

0. FREBESEME ETREN) -5
HE-F-BF+-A=+—H

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the
Company and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong.
In the year of 2003, our R&D department completed the development
of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the first largest
contributor of revenue and its revenue rose as expected.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

In 2013, the addition of the construction in progress included
acquisition of a plot of land of approximately 50,000 sg.m., which will
be the third phase of our new production line developments, while
the lands acquired in the year 2012 represented the first and second
development phase.

The first and second development phase represented an area of
approximately 12,000 sq.m., which houses six production lines and
two workshops for producing five medicaments under two Good
Manufacturing Practice Certificates; and an area of approximately
20,000 sqg.m., which houses six production lines and three workshops
for producing six medicaments under two Good Manufacturing
Practice Certificates, respectively. The first development phase has
been completed and in use since 2012, while the second phase has
been completed in 2013 and commenced operation in February 2014.
The third phase is currently under construction as we have completed
the construction of a workshop and obtained the GMP certification in
December 2014. With the official commencement of operation of the
third phrase at the middle of 2015, we believe the production capacity
of the Group will be further enhanced.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s recorded
a revenue amounted to approximately RMB601,715,000 (2013:
RMB457,746,000), a growth of approximately 31% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB132,785,000, representing an increase of 67% as compared with
RMB79,274,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings per share
amounted to RMB23.70 cents (2013: RMB14.15 cents), representing
an increase of RMB9.55 cents over the previous year.

The obvious growth in turnover was mainly attributable to the increase
in the revenue from our core revenue generator, namely Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule (8RB ZRB%). The medicine of Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule had penetrated into the market, with the sales in 2014 rose as
expected.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance
in 2014. It is believed that the remarkable growth in profitability is
attributed to the following reasons.

Firstly, with its explicit therapeutic effects as well as pragmatic and
innovative academic promotion, our dominant product, namely Hai
Kun Shen Xi capsule (8 2B = B %), has become increasingly notable
among similar drugs in the PRC in terms of its competitive strength
and continuous expanding market, resulting in an increasing product
sales. This together with the fact that our production lines, including
No. One solid dosage capsule production workshop, No. Three solid
dosage pills (concentrated pills) production workshop and production
line for bulk drug (fucoidan), have obtained the new version of Good
Manufacturing Practice Certificate in 2014, bolstered the growth and
development of the Company.

Secondly, we strengthened our efforts on integrating market
resources, encouraging reasonable mobility of personnel, unifying the
price of products supplied and regulating sales practices. Focusing
on enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such
as soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in
order to identify new profit drivers.

Thirdly, in addition to proactively organizing and participating in
academic promotion in relation to nephrology at state level, we also
focused on the annual activities held under the Academic Institute of
Nephrology (BJRE i1 4 &) and seminars on pharmaceutical products
at provincial and prefecture levels. As the participants are clinical
experts, we are in a better position to learn more about and expand
the fundamental medical market through responding to patients’
feedback more efficiency.

Fourthly, we enhanced our efforts to recruit new sales staffs and
are dedicated to train sales teams in order to improve their overall
quality and strengthen their capabilities. We have nurtured the
sense of overall awareness and the sense of responsibilities among
every salesperson in charge of regional markets and provincial sales
managers. Meanwhile, we have also focused on getting our products
covered by local medical insurance and included in the supplemental
catalogue for the new rural cooperative medical system. We also put
in efforts on product tender and filing of product prices. Through our
concerted effort, we accelerated the development of markets and
hence making our market coverage wider.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately 80.9%, representing a 0.6% decrease as compared
with that of 81.5% for the year ended 31 December 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB18,309,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB14,877,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Distribution and selling costs rose to approximately RMB276,949,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately
RMB255,319,000 in last year. These expenses accounted for 46% of
turnover in 2014, which represented a 10% decrease from 56% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The distribution
and selling costs increase approximately RMB21,630,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB67,901,000 from approximately
RMB37,347,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB130,316,000 (2013: RMB70,359,000) with
total borrowings of RMB8,830,000 (2013: RMB8,830,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had total assets of RMB783,666,000
(2013: RMB650,123,000) which were financed by current liabilities of
RMB151,239,000 (2013: RMB151,461,000), long term borrowings
of RMB7,513,000 (2013: RMB8,148,000), deferred tax liabilities
of RMB239,000 (2013: RMB338,000) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB606,317,000 (2013: RMB473,532,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB130,316,000. As at 31 December 2014, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 23% (2013:
27%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of RMB177,349,000 (2013: RMB176,591,000) by the Group’s total
equity and liabilities of RMB783,666,000 (2013: RMB650,123,000).
The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to
total net assets was 1.5% (2013: 1.9%).

EMPLOYEES
The Group has a total of 550 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 60, male, is the Chairman, general manager and secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior
economist. His previous positions are as follows: He was a teacher
and the secretary of Youth League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle
School from September 1978 to October 1983; he worked in county
and town governments from November 1983 to September 1989,
during which he held the position of deputy town head; he has been
the Chairman, general manager and secretary of the Party committee
of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 51, male, is an executive director and deputy general manager.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 50, male, is an executive director and chief engineer. He holds
a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-charge and senior engineer.
From July 1984 to August 1986, he studied in Shanxi Province Herbal
School; from September 1986 to August 1988, he acted as director
of quality inspection department of herbal medicine company in
Huinan County; from September 1988 to August 1991, he studied
in Shanghai Medicine University; from September 1991 to January
1993, he acted as district manager of Changlong Bio-pharmacy
Company; from February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master
degree in Jilin University; from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted
as chief engineer of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and
commenced to perform his duties of executive director and chief
engineer on 9 August 2007.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 48, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He
holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant, certified
estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July 1990, he
studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from August 1990 to
May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County;
from August 1996 to December 2006, he held the position of director
and equipment director and finance officer of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was appointed as
director and chief finance officer of the Company in March 2007.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Aged 59, male, is an independent non-executive director. Mr. Gao
is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He has over 30 years of
experience in audit and accounting services. He is currently serving
as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified Public Accountant
(Ermc B A 5T = 7). Prior to this, he was a partner of Huinan
County Audit Firm (¥ 2 5T =75 F7). He worked at the Resources
Bureau of Huinan County (M &¥1%E& @) from 1974 to 1994,

SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 66, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995. He
has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory committee
of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 45, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School with
associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From 1991 to
2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory of Huinan
County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and has acted as
supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 58, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990. He
worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution office. He
has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since 1996.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 35, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 47, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992 with
a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief pharmacist
and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as dean of
Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has worked as
Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the brand names of
Changlong and Shendi. There were no changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC. In 2014,
turnover of the Group was generated entirely from sales in the PRC
and all identifiable assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental analysis is
prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 107.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes
below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

MBEREE

UTAEREECAHEEAREERBEZG
E - DR TXMEASELERR T2 IBLE

BERMBmR D -

Results E4
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Turnover L 601,715 457,746
Profit before income tax T B A 159,664 94,609
Income tax expense Frig®isz i (26,879) (15,335)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~— AREFRERZB ARG
attributable to owners of the Company =Rl 132,785 79,274
Assets and liabilities BEREE
2014 2013
. L —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Total assets BEE 783,666 650,123
Total liabilities BafE (177,349) (176,591)
Net assets BEFE 606,317 473,532

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial
statements respectively.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2014.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group and the Company are set out
in Note 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 34 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB477,183,000 (2013: RMB344,375,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 20% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2013: 25%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 5% (2013: 7%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 39% (2013: 35%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 17% (2013: 13%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo (resigned with effect from 2 September 2014)
Mr. Chen Qi Ming (resigned with effect from 2 September 2014)
Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Yong Cai (appointed with effect from 20 May 2014)

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (resigned with effect from 27 November 2014)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing (resigned with effect from 20 May 2014)

Mr. Yan Li Jin (resigned with effect from 27 November 2014)

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men

Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN SHARES

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in

EERESRROMERS

MN-TB—NE+-A=+—0 KXQATEF -

ERFETBRAERAR T&EIET‘M%PP&I
(FERBEHLEEGEA(H ﬁ&ﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬁ\m
XVEB) 89 B 15 ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ REHFTHEAREE

K HAEAEBISE 35216 + 2B AZ G ATl 2 5 it A9
AR t*ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁxﬁﬁaﬂ%ﬁi 5 EmRAl
([BIZEWR LR A ) 55.46156E5.67IKFIEEE
BEREIEZEMBMNGADR R TOET R

Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities A& :
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long positions in shares RBROHRE
Percentage of
total registered
Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital
Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares {48 5 AR <
= REEER 14 ANEREE ERERBS L WEZL
Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
BEEIN EA EnlAA
Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
aRBE EA EnlAA
Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX EA EnlAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the B EXFEEZEEN  R-ET—NFE+_/A=+—
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has E AAREE BEERFEITHRABBENAK

any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EEBARGHER
BEXEEREENROMER | —BRAREE
S BREER  BEENIZTBRABREEZEN
BT N\EA T FRMBEERRITETMER
%AK AR A MER A S 2 R A

NE) - B E S E AR K& A R IR S E
MR REE  EERIBITHRABARER
HAZERBAZEER -

BEZRAERARTHRENE
ER iﬁ
T-MEF-A=+—A  REAAFARE
2.5 U5 D OO B R T -
MTAL(AARES HFEREBTHRASR
SN AR AR BB RIS B RS RAA -

Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHRR
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of  total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
1 48 5 1 B <
RREHE B MY NEREE HARERB DL WE DL
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63
BESIREEERETAR(MiE) ExmEEA
Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have — #it - BAMAARR B AERS - BREHRIREEREME
any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the AR EEA A AR BRI EEE - BIEEE
Board of Directors. FEARMRE -
Long positions in H shares RHERHERE

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of  total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

LB AR A

REEME &4 HR#E EHRBE S MBS

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 17.11% 5.269%
R e EERA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11% 2.498%

ki BEmEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.

At 27 November, 2014, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang and Mr. Yan Li Jin have
resigned as an independent non-executive director (“INED”) of the
Company and ceased to be a member of the Committee. Pursuant
to the rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Committee must
comprise a minimum of three members and the Committee is now
composed of only one INED, namely Mr. Gao Yong Cai.
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The Company requires additional time than expected to identify
suitable candidates as new INED and Audit Committee’s member.
The Group has identified suitable candidates, but there are formalities
and procedures which the Group cannot finalize at that moment. In
the meantime, the Company has only one INED and Audit Committee
member and thus is temporarily unable to strictly comply with Rules
5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules requiring the Company
to retain at all times three INEDs and a minimum of three members
to comprise the Committee. Also, the Company has breached the
requirements of Listing Rules of 5.06 and 5.33 which require the
Company to fill up the outstanding position within three months from
the date of failing to meet these requirements.

The Board expects that the new appointment could be finalized as
soon as possible and that the Company would be able to fully comply
with Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules as soon as
possible.

The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 108 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 23 to 31 of the annual report.
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AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2015

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

3 4]
ARTERBEBREAS LR 2 R R AEER
RZELBG (F8) B B EBHERADAER
AR AT -

AEFEW

EEN
S

REE A
—T-R4=A=+H



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo (resigned with effect from 2 September 2014)
Mr. Chen Qi Ming (resigned with effect from 2 September 2014)
Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Yong Cai (appointed with effect from 20 May 2014)

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (resigned with effect from 27 November 2014)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing (resigned with effect from 20 May 2014)

Mr. Yan Li Jin (resigned with effect from 27 November 2014)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised five Directors,
four of whom are Executive Directors, one of whom is INED of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold
the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among the members of the Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, eight regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Esgaes
T BB \REREEREE  EERLE
HEWT -

Meetings attended/Held

Directors BEE BHE BETEE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) RO A (FE) 8/8
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SR e 8/8
Mr. Tian Xin Guo® AT E® 5/8
Mr. Chen Qi Ming® FRELAA S 4@ 5/8
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REIXEHE 8/8
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang 2 M) S A 8/8
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUMITES

Mr. Gao Yong Cai® mAKA LA 5/8
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang® hEREEED 7/8
Mr. Xue Chang Qing" B RIBHED 0/8
Mr. Yan Li Jin BrekEw 7/8

resigned on 20 May 2014
appointed on 20 May 2014
resigned on 2 September 2014
resigned on 27 November 2014

= 5 ® =

2 8 N =

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board
of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai is the INED.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Mr. Zhang Hong. The remuneration committee
schedules meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary for the
transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE CHE CETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (Chairman) B EE(EE)

(appointed on 20 May 2014) (R—ZE—WFRA-THEZMT) 2/2
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang LEESEE

(resigned on 27 November 2014) (RZE2—WF+—AZ+tHET) 2/2
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBLE

(resigned on 20 May 2014) (RZZE—WOFHA=Z+HEFIT) 0/2
Mr. Zhang Hong sRah A 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration
policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
of one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and one INED, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Yong Cai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE CHE CEITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (Chairman) B EE(EE)

(appointed on 20 May 2014) (R=ZZE—NWFRA-+HEZT) 2/3
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) IEFERE(EE)

(resigned on 27 November 2014) (R=ZZE—WF+—A=+tBEHT) 3/3
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BRBLEE

(resigned on 20 May 2014) (R=—ZE—MFERA-+HEHT) 0/3
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREEN ST 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises one member, Mr. Gao Yong Cai. All of them is INEDs.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai. The
Board considers that each Audit Committee has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal,
accounting and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE BEHE BETEER
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (Chairman) SR TE(EE)

(appointed on 20 May 2014) (R—Z—NFRA-THREZRT) 2/4
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang IEEFLEAE

(resigned on 27 November 2014) (R-—Z—F+—A-++tBEHT) 4/4
Mr. Xue Chang Qing ERERE

(resigned on 20 May 2014) (R-—Z—WFERAB-+HEHT) 0/4
Mr. Yan Li Jin ekt

(resigned on 27 November 2014) (R -Z—WNFE+— /- ++HET) 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS,
AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

At 27 November, 2014, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang and Mr. Yan Li Jin have
resigned as an independent non-executive director (“INED”) and audit
and remuneration committee members of the Company and ceased
to be a member of the Committee. Pursuant to the rules 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules, the audit and remuneration Committee must
comprise a minimum of three members and the audit Committee is
now composed of only one INED, namely Mr. Gao Yong Cai.

The Company requires more time than expected to identify suitable
candidates as new INED, audit and remuneration committee
members. The Group has identified suitable candidates, but there are
formalities and procedures which the Group cannot finalize at that
moment. In the meantime, the Company has only one INED and audit
committee member and two remuneration committee members and
thus is temporarily unable to strictly comply with Rules 5.05(1) and
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules requiring the Company to retain at all
times three INEDs and a minimum of three members to comprise the
audit committee, and with Rules of 5.05A requiring the Company to
appoint INEDs representing at least one-third of the board, and with
Rules of 5.34 requiring the Company to establish a remuneration
committee chaired by an independent non-executive director and
comprising a majority of independent non-executive directors. Also,
the Company has breached the requirements of Listing Rules of
5.06 and 5.33 which require the Company to fill up the outstanding
position within three months from the date of failing to meet these
requirements.

The Board expects that the new appointment could be finalized as
soon as possible and that the Company would be able to fully comply
with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05A, 5.28 and 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules
as soon as possible. Further announcement will be made by the
Company once the new appointment is confirmed in due course.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 33 and 34 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2014, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control
system. The Company convened meeting periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. The Directors are
of the view that the existing system of internal control is effective and
adequate to the Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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EZeHss

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liabilities)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBRES

2 REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

MRZRIERIS (HE)EEMSEHMBIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liabilities)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 107, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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BAZBMBRES

R REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

MRZERIERIR(FEB)ESEFERBIIRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number PO1886

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FT—WFE+_—_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥ET T ARETFTT
Turnover LR 4 601,715 457,746
Cost of sales SHE KR (115,213) (84,689)
Gross profit EF 486,502 373,057
Other income H AU A 6 11,309 14,768
Other gains Hiaplzs 7 7,000 109
Distribution and selling costs DIERIEERX (276,949) (255,319)
Administrative expenses THAX (67,901) (37,347)
Profit from operations 4R EZ SR 159,961 95,268
Finance costs A& A 8 (297) (659)
Profit before income tax T Bz A 9 159,664 94,609
Income tax expense FRS Bz i 10(a) (26,879) (15,335)
Profit for the year A [ i A 132,785 79,274
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEU s _ _
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ>HWNZEAEE 132,785 79,274
Profit attributable to: AT EEAREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Z PN 132,785 79,274
Total comprehensive income T EGAZEKE
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company RAREB A 132,785 79,274
Earnings per share BRRZF
- Basic (RMB cents) —EAR(ARED) 11 23.70 14.15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  B&Mf ZMisF B A MR EE Y —H -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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mEEERER

As at 31 December 2014
R-FE—mFE+=F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHEZ27R)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ET T ARBEFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 16 5,169 4,890
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 17 144,307 99,483
Prepaid land lease payments SEU s itk 18 16,882 17,335
Construction in progress EEIR 19 66,781 145,834
Intangible assets B E 21 2,519 11,229
235,658 278,771
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 33,635 25,581
Trade receivables TEIRE FERER 24 230,196 121,184
Other receivables, deposits HEmEWIE - ;Te &k
and prepayments B RIE 25 88,408 87,184
Loans receivables RUE R 26 35,000 36,590
Prepaid land lease payments TS 18 453 454
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMEEE 23 30,000 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBEEEY 27 130,316 70,359
548,008 371,352
Current liabilities pEI=RE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 28 13,559 10,830
Other payables, deposits received H R RIE - 21
and accruals e NESTER 105,348 123,929
Deferred income IRFEHA 31 3,086 1,886
Income tax payable ERATEH 12,255 3,935
Other tax payables H b R IE 13,847 8,326
Loans from government authority TR E R 30 1,317 682
Dividend payable FERTIE 1,827 1,873
151,239 151,461
Net current assets RBEEZE 396,769 219,891
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 632,427 498,662

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

MEEERER
As at 31 December 2014
R-FE—mFE+=—F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZTR)
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ET T ARBEFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 3,513 4,148
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 4,000 4,000
Deferred income PRIEUT A 31 18,358 16,644
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 32 239 338
26,110 25,130
Net assets EEFE 606,317 473,532
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS & F#EA AL
OF THE COMPANY R
Share capital R 7K 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves wEE 550,292 417,507
Total equity FESBERE 606,317 473,532

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by #ZEHEREA T RAF=A=THEEZEES

the board of directors on 30 March 2015. HofE R B o
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
R4 HER
Director Director
EBFE EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — B&EMT 7 Iif 5T B A ISRz BEe 2 — 25 -
statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
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As at 31 December 2014
R-FE—mFE+=F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2014 2013
—E-MmF —EF—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ET T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Bearer biological assets TREEMEE 16 5,169 4,890
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 17 144,307 99,483
Prepaid land lease payments TS 18 16,882 17,335
Construction in progress TEEITR 19 66,781 145,834
Investment in subsidiaries RIEB AR E 20 25,500 25,500
Intangible assets WA E 21 2,519 11,229
261,158 304,271
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 22 33,635 25,581
Trade receivables FEULE ZBR 24 245,817 142,533
Other receivables, deposits HEmEWEIE - 5T
and prepayments KIB IR 25 84,896 82,391
Loans receivables eI E R 26 35,000 36,590
Prepaid land lease payments AN LS 18 453 454
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENREE 23 30,000 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents BE MBS EEY 27 126,336 62,251
556,137 379,800
Current liabilities pE=RE
Trade payables FERTE SR 28 13,559 10,830
Other payables, deposits received HMERFIE - 2GS
and accruals KERHE R 103,712 122,471
Amounts due to subsidiaries TERB B AR ZIA 20 24,660 24,660
Deferred income IRIEUT A 31 3,086 1,886
Income tax payable T PTISHR 12,255 3,935
Other tax payables H A FE IR 13,221 7,864
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 1,317 682
Dividend payable FERTIRE 1,827 1,873
173,637 174,201
Net current assets MEEEFE 382,500 205,599
Total assets less current liabilities BEERADEE 643,658 509,870

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014



BALANCE SHEET

EEE/R

As at 31 December 2014
R-FE—mFE+=—F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2014 2013
—T-mE —F—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 3,513 4,148
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 4,000 4,000
Deferred income FEIERW A 31 18,358 16,644
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 32 239 338
26,110 25,130
Net assets EEFE 617,548 484,740
EQUITY Ea
Share capital R 2R 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves =g 34 561,523 428,715
Total equity AR 617,548 484,740

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of directors on 30 March 2015.

ZHANG HONG

R 5A
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

ZHAO BAO GANG

ik ]

Director

EF

FZEMBHRRR _T-—AF=—A=+tHEE=S
HUAE R SRR B

BEPM 2 it AN TS R R 2 — 8D ©

EMEERREECERBRO AR AR

ZE—HFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

40

2 A 3£
mEERSER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WFE+—_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZTR)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
RA ROGRE EERBHE REEA @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥Tn ARETR AR¥Tn ARETx
(Note 33)  (Note 34(a))  (Note 34(b))
(Hi233)  (Wiits4a)  (H1z34b)
Balance at 1 January 2013 N_E—=F—f—Hz&H 56,025 51,098 33,242 253,893 394,258
Comprehensive income ZHEMNE
Profit for the year NEZHF - - - 79,274 79,274
Other comprehensive income HrzEhE - - - - N
Total comprehensive income PENESE - - - 79,274 79,274
Transactions with owners REZXE
Appropriation to statutory BREEERS
surplus reserve FafE - - - - _
At 31 December 2013 A\ZE—=F+-A=1+—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 333,167 473,532
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZE-MF—-A—Bz&#% 56,025 51,098 33,242 333,167 473,532
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year RERRH - - - 132,785 132,785
Other comprehensive income Ht2 AW - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ENF RS - - - 132,785 132,785
Transactions with owners BRZX%
Appropriation to statutory BREATRSGHE
surplus reserve - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=A=+—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 465,952 606,317

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= AN Ar~—X
SmEHETRER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FT—WFE+_—_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZTR)
2014 2013
—E-—MmF —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARET ARET T
Cash from operating activities RETHELEZHERE
Profit before income tax FRAns Al 159,664 94,609
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Interest income FLEMA 6 (3,306) (3,396)
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets AHPERBEER RS 6 (662) (261)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FEUE ZBR TR (E
trade receivables (%), B 6 (568) 678
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of H FEWGIR R E
other receivables B/ (E%) 6,9 1,792 (1,629)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for BGRB8 5578 Rk
impairment loss BN REREBERE
on trade deposit and prepayment 6,9 94 (989)
Interest expenses FBEH 8 297 659
(Reversal of)/provision for obsolete and slow- BERRHTFERE
moving inventories (BI),/ B 6,9 (1,061) 2,699
Provision for impairment on R ETRERE
loans receivables B 9 12,090 2,513
Provision for impairment of intangible assets mREERMERE 9 6,085 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 9 3,815 4,626
Impairment loss on property, WE - BEREE
plant and equipment HEEE 9 8,497 1,457
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments LS #H 9 454 453
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE  BEIIENE 9 11,489 8,601
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  HER
plant and equipment RABER /(A7) 9 10,747 (109)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEERT 7 (7,000) -
Government subsidy B G 6 (1,593) (5,760)
Recognition of deferred income BN 6 (3,086) (1,886)
Operating cash flows before working HEESE BRI LR
capital changes Rene 197,748 102,265
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE(EMm),/w (6,974) 7,077
Increase in trade receivables JENE ZERFE M (108,444) (15,693)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HAa IR - ;e &
and prepayments TR SR (3,110) (30,357)
(Increase)/decrease in loans receivables FElE (L) A (500) 629
Increase in trade payables e ZERFEM 2,729 2,877
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, deposits HineEoE - EWGETS
received and accruals REHERCHD) /B0 (18,758) 40,340
Increase/(decrease) in other tax payables HibEAFHEE N, CRd) 5,521 (2,769)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_—T—FEF - A=+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Notgs RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARETR ARET T
Cash generated from operations REEEEL 7S 68,212 104,409
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELECRERE
Cash generated from operations REREEEL RS 68,212 104,409
Income tax paid BEFEH (18,658) (21,056)
Interest paid 2FE 8 (120) (659)
Net cash generated from operating activites  REEBELHELEE 49,434 82,694
Cash flows from investing activities REELBELEZRERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETLLEMEE 16 (298) (2,055)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEREE 17 (3,894) (2,331)
Purchase of construction in progress EERETR 19 (8,688) (79,057)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE 21 (1,190) -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BERAHEENKEE 23 (160,000) (108,200)
Proceeds from disposal of property, e ER F%&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
plant and equipment 16,078 361
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEEREERSIE 7,000 -
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale HET it EN K ARMGRA
financial assets 23 160,000 73,200
Increase in loan receivables JEUE FRIE N (10,000) -
Interest received BUFIS ) 6 3,306 3,396
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets A E B R A A S 6 662 261
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEL /(BB LEE
investing activities 2,976 (109,425)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXRELZBERE
Proceeds from government subsidies BT BEFTS 2008 7,593 10,800
Repayment of loans from government authority EERTREER 30 - (620)
Dividend paid ERRE (46) (464)
Drawndown of bank borrowings EMRITRE 29 - 4,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE 29 - (6,000)
Net cash generated from financing activities HMEEREEZRSTE 7,547 7,716
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ﬁ%&ﬁ%%’ﬁ%
cash equivalents #h0,/ AL % 59,957 (19,015)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year B E&RREEEY 70,359 89,374
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRALRBLEEY 130,316 70,359
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReERASESENMEHRIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances BeRRTHEA 130,316 70,359

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the
brand names of Changlong and Shendi. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretation issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong, applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and
the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

—RER
ARBR—NAANFEPEARKME
(TPEDRIR—BBRELE - —ANA
F+-AZ+hB BREPERIRDESR
MG ARAH—HEBLEEAS—
MEREMERR - ERR—ANRFN
A+RAB BEMEREERFEZE SN
B ARRAFBRER—BROBIBRA
Al e R—ANANFOA-—+H  ARFHE
TR A B IR —BALIR R LB -
RE S MBI E RNIABITALIR -

ARRHER —ZT-—FRAA - +HARE
ERBMARZMARRR (B AIE
R (TAIZEMR ) £ e

AREEBUARENGHARBETBERS
BUE R DEELEEY - B RARIMEDZE
TSR 5E20 °

EXRESTHERBE

REZEFEAMBRRARN G K
HRTX - BRABEREAIN  ZFBRRDE
BERARME2/RIFE -

(a) EpHIEH

R AV BRERDIZBRE S A
2E([BEGHMAT ) BEHOE
RS ERN(EBY RS E
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SEBRARBIERFH EmRA
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
(Amendments) liabilities

HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
(Amendments) non-financial assets

HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of
(Amendments) hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(c)

(continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Financial instruments*

Regulatory deferral accounts?

Revenue from contracts with customers®

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations?

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer plants?

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions
Equity method in separate financial statements?
Sale and contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture?
Annual improvements HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle'
Annual improvements HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle'

Annual improvements HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle?

n Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (continued)

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or revised
HKASs and HKFRSs, amendments and interpretation to
existing HKASs and HKFRSs. Management is currently
assessing the financial impact of these revisions to the
Group’s financial position and performance.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the impact of these
changes.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statement
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

(iii) Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

() Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

(m) Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables”, “loans receivables” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

BERETHBERBE (&)

(m) BiE&EEE)
(iii) BBEEREE)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the MR 2 BB - REEIE 25
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can FRL  MROHREZE -
be related objectively to an event occurring after the BREEEEREMEECE
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement H(mEEAEETRSE)
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the R - RIS ERI R ZRE
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised 518 2 Bl B8 18 R 4R ?E § 7
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. R o

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.

(iv) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
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impairment loss on the that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
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reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(0) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(9)]

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the income statement within “other gains and/
(losses)”. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available for sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with the
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in
the defined contribution retirement plans managed
by the local government authorities whereby they
are required to contribute to the schemes at fixed
rates of the employees’ salary costs. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members

who may be expected to influence, or be

influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(y) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(k). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and
estimates.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is made based on assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/written back in the period in which the estimate
has been changed.
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PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

(d) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

4. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines. Revenue represents the
invoiced value of merchandise sold less allowances for returns,
discounts, value-added tax and other sales related taxes.
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on type of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC. Since this
is the only reportable operating segment of the Group, no further
operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.

7 RRE R
SEMBITES  NEBLEREA 5
BRODELFZDBEREAMER I BE
ﬂ DREEBEMAINNENERER
DHTELE o

WTEFDRAARBER T 2
B - T2 3 AR B AT
AR - Al - %82 RIS

LA -

& & R

AN REBRHKRA X E2E EE
NEBEAREARBAY @RS MHKREE—

& - BNhE o Eik - WEZ MR DI o

EHFEEFZEH
HE-_Z-—NER-_ZT—=ZF+_A
—t+—RHIEFE WEKRAERPF 2N
AEBE ML BUWZEBB10% °

OTHER INCOME Hal A
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz ARET T ARETT
Recovery of bad debts previously W =] 2 4 51 22 BR
written off 115 351
Bank interest income RITH EWA 491 497
Government subsidies (Note) BT aL (I aE) 1,593 5,760
Recognition of deferred income EE;@}ELHSU\ 31 3,086 1,886
Interest income on loans receivables  [EWE FF| 2 U A 2,815 2,899
Yield gain on available-for-sale AIEEERBEE
financial assets [B] #R Uk = 662 261
Reversal of impairment of inventories 17 & i & ] #& 22 1,061 -
Reversal of provision of trade JEUE 5 BR SR [ 4
receivables 24 568 -
Reversal of provision of other L {th 8 Lk R B 1 (o]
receivables 25 = 1,629
Reversal of provision of deposit and 5] & T8+ 2018 13 & 3] &
prepayment 25 - 989
Others Hith 918 496
11,309 14,768

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group received
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology
development of the Group.
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PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hib=
2014 2013
—E-0mF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥ET T AREFTT
Gain on disposal of property, LEME BEX&
plant and equipment HEET 17 - 109
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEEEERT 7,000 -
7,000 109
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMZA
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Interest expenses on loans from BT H#EER 27 B
government authority &M 177 179
Interest expenses on short-term mIER  RHRTTEE 2
bank borrowings, unsecured MEBH = 360
Interest expenses on long-term mER RAFREER
bank borrowings, wholly repayable RERITEEZFEEA
within five years, unsecured 120 120
297 659

EMEERREECERBRO AR AR

—ZT—YFFIR
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
CON =)

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BiAlaEF

2014 2013
—E-0mF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR®T T AR T T
Profit before income tax for the year is R B B )
arrived at after charging/(crediting):— Bk (GFA)
TH&EE : —
Cost of inventories sold (excluding BHETFTERA(TE
additional provision for, and write off of FEIGDNBE S I i B
obsolete and slow-moving inventories) BEENEEEE 106,580 77,933
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving FEE LR HFERE
inventories 22 - 2,699
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERER 21 6,085 -
Impairment loss on loans receivables JEWE 2 R EEE 26 12,090 2,513
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEUNE ZERF 2 RE
BE 24 - 678
Impairment loss on other receivables, Hmghsr - 5Tek
deposit and prepayment FERRIE Y
BIEEE 25 1,886 -
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB KRG
plant and equipment REEE 17 8,497 1,457
Auditor’s remuneration:— ZEEME - —
Provision for the year FAEE 210 268
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (9) -
Amortisation of intangible assets E AN
(included in cost of sales) (B ASHERKA) 21 3,815 4,626
Research and development cost HEBsH 1,364 3,685
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEfT b FE S B SH
payments (included in cost of sales) (FIASHERA) 18 454 453
Depreciation of property, plant WE - R KR
and equipment e 17 11,489 8,601
Employee benefits expenses BIRHMNER
(excluding directors’ and supervisors’ (TEEEER
remuneration): EEME)
Salaries and allowances e MoRE 142,073 122,234
Pension scheme contributions RIS B 15 1,576 1,120
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEDE  WMEM
plant and equipment RiEEIE (BT 17 10,747 (109)

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

(b)

10. FAfEHi < i

Income tax represents: (@) FIBBEE:
2014 2013
—ZE—F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T

PRC enterprise income tax PRI EMSH

— Current year —KNFEE 28,246 15,058
— Overprovision in prior years — BT FEBERE (1,268) -
Deferred taxation (Note 32) EETRIE (KT 7#32) (99) 277
26,879 15,335

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which
became effective from 1 January 2008. In accordance with
the new tax law, an unified enterprise income tax rate of
25% is applied to both domestic-invested enterprises and
foreign- invested enterprises.

On 12 March 2012, the Company was accredited as
a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the Jilin
Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (& #& &t
E 1 1iTFE) and is entitled to a reduced PRC Enterprise
Income tax rate of 15% for the three consecutive years
commenced since year 2012.

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

(b)

B b % B (8 B4 T AR I R B oA
BRAREE -

R-BTLF=A+XEB 2EHA
AGHILEPEECEMSTL - A
—EENE-F-HBER - RIE
L FTAERNE RINEDERS
— IR K%M EME -

AAFIRN-—_ZE——FE=A+_-RA%
EMERERTEEABERSH G
¥ o RARAN T —_FstEE
ZFAERETRCEMSHRES
15% 5N TR o

BHEYHESHTENRBERARRE
HERIOE -

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFIT

Profit before income tax TR A A 159,664 94,609
National tax calculated at PRC EHRBEMSHE15%

enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZZF—=%F 1 15%)

(2013: 15%) FFERER 23,950 14,191
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A 175 5 2 H Tl 75 2 & 4,296 867
Overprovision in prior years BT FE R (1,268) -
Deferred tax on temporary differences @1F 5 [E & =25

in prior year EERIR (99) 277
Income tax expense Fris®is & 26,879 15,335

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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PR AR YEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 is based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Group for the year of RMB132,785,000 (2013:
RMB79,274,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the
year (2013: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 includes a profit of RMB132,808,000 (2013:
RMB79,816,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 34).

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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PR AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Director’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 78 of Schedule 11
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622), with
reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong

14. EERERITHAEMES

(a) EE=#ME

FR - RBEAIZER ETRIEES
CRAMERBIY(F622F ) R11578
ER2BAIEBCRTIEN)(FE32
B)E1611E 2 R T P iEE R E S

Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) is as follows: oy NN
2014 —E—-fF
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2014 Total
fees  EHd - 2 bonus contributions < —E—M&E
EEWE REMFE Bigfed  BARSHER ame
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Tr ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR
(Note (i)
(FiE)
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ 3R2A(F/E) - 74 399 7 480
Zhang Xiao Guang REEK - 54 199 9 262
Zhao Bao Gang HER - 20 199 141 360
Tian Xin Guo® A E - 5 - - 5
Chen Qi Ming® BRELRS - 5 - - 5
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 54 220 9 283
Independent Non-Executive B35 77E% -
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang“ MEHY - - -
Yan Li Jin® g - - -
Xue Chang Qing"! EREY - - - - -
Gao Yong Cai® = v - - . _ _
- 217 1,017 166 1,400
0 resigned on 20 May 2014 0 RZT—WNFRA=THET
@ appointed on 20 May 2014 @ R-ZT-NERA-+HERT
©  resigned on 2 September 2014 © R-ZT—MENA-BEHT
@ resigned on 27 November 2014 W RN—T-E+—A -+t HET
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the et - () MEEABHTHEESHRE

Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

BE THEFE2ELE
SRS  AARBERA
AL BMIGBIRRET -

EMEERREECERBRO AR AR
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEME (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (@) EEM&(H)
2013 —E—=fF
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension

Directors’ benefits  Discretionary fund 2013 Total

fees e 2Bk bonus  contributions —E-=F

EExHe  REAMAR WL BRARSER Be

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT

(Note (i)
(FiE0)
Executive Directors: HiTEE
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ $R3h(%/E) - 86 1,189 7 1,282
Zhang Xiao Guang REY - 66 539 7 612
Zhao Bao Gang HEM - 65 332 - 397
Tian Xin Guo m - 68 327 - 395
Chen Qi Ming R AR - 65 346 - 411
Wu Guo Wen REN - 65 339 6 410
Independent Non-Executive B S {TEE -
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LEH - 62 145 - 207
Yan Li Jin Hes - - - - -
Xue Chang Qing ERE - - 25 - 25
- 477 3,242 20 3,739
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the BtaE - () BIEEAmFHNEE KRS
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of EH o UTHEEELELE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s B E s BARBERA
operating results, individual performance and comparable BB EBEBEEE

market statistics.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHRAEME (&)

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB789,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
and RMB786,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013)
are as follows:—

(b) SRITHAEMSE
REEBMARASESTINzME
K7 1,000,0008 L (REE =T
—MNF+ZA=+—HLEFEHEE
RARB789,000L KRB E -Z
—=F+ZA=+—HLEFEHEE
RARE786,0007T) © EFFIENT ¢

2014 —F-mF
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2014 Total
R 111 bonus contributions —E—MF
K E At Rl MEREA  BARESER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R ARET R AR®T T
(Note (i))
(Be0)
Supervisors: [
Zhang Jing Zhou R M 1 - 1
Li Bao Hai TEF 37 - 43
Wu Wei Men KRR 36 - 5 41
74 - 11 85
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration BiaE - ) BISEAmFHNEE KRS

Committee and is approved by the board of directors,
having determined with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

B THEFE2EAE
B Em - BARBRA
BHEMSBIRRETE -

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEME (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued) (b) BRITHAEME(HE)
2013 =F-=%

Salaries,
allowances
and other

benefits  Discretionary ~ Pension fund 2013 Total

e 2R bonus  contributions —T-=F

R E Mz B EBREER Bl

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTT ARETT ARBTE

(Note (i)
(Kre0)
Supervisors: [
Zhang Jing Zhou R M 16 22 - 38
Li Bao Hai TEF 42 15 5 62
Wu Wei Men REER 42 18 5 65
100 55 10 165
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the BtaE - () BIEEAmEHNEE KRS
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of BE O UHEEELELE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s g s BARBERA
operating results, individual performance and comparable B BMISEIBEEEE

market statistics.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c)
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
four Directors (2013: five Directors) whose remuneration
is set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining one (2013: Nil) highest paid, non-director
employees whose remuneration were all below
HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB789,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and RMB786,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013) are as follows:

14. EERSRITHRAEME (F)

TEREEHFMAL

FRAEZREFMALRIEIRE
E(ZZ—Z=ZF :58%5F5)  HIN
THBRLEX@BT > B &K
EEEMIBERFHEESESR
(ZE—=ZF B)Z2FMWHER
1,000,000 L (B 2 =& — U 4F
+Z A=+ BLEFEHSEAAR
789,000t B E—T—=F+=
A=+ —BLEFERERARE

786,0007T) « HEFMEELT
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits % & - 28L& H A4 F)25 186 -
Pension scheme contributions RIREEHEIER = -
186 -

The emoluments of the individuals fell within the following
bands:

ZEATHMEBR AR T -

Number of individuals

AE
2014 2013
—E—UEF —E—=4F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000, 1,500,001/ 7T — 2,000,000 - 1
equivalent to RMB1,183,000 — BT HERARE
RMB1,578,000 (2013: equivalent to 1,183,000 — AR
RMB1,179,000 — RMB1,572,000) 1,578,0007C( =& —=14 :
HEE R ARE1,179,0007T —
AR#1,572,0007T)
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000, 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 - -
equivalent to RMB789,000 — B HERARE
RMB1,183,000 (2013: equivalent to 789,0007T — AR K&
RMB786,000 — RMB1,179,000) 1,183,00070( =& — =4 :
HE R ARE786,0007T —
AER#1,179,0007T)
Below HK$1,000,001, equivalent to {X 721,000,001 7T - 5 4

RMB789,000 (2013: equivalent to
RMB786,000)

HE R ARE789,0007T
(ZB—=F: BER®
AFR#786,0007T)

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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(UARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB789,000 (2013: equivalent to
RMB786,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain-
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The
local government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligation payable to retired employees.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB1,754,000
(2013: RMB1,150,000). The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
the Scheme.

14.

15.

EERERTBRAEMS (R)

(c) EEBEEHFMAL(E)

BRI F@QEHBENZESHEIN - B
NHERARE [EERSLEEE
SR —fFMESREMERERA
BB eNEBE_ZT—NE+_A
=+—ARBE-ZE—=%+-A1
=+ —HHE®1,000,000/% T °
HERNARK789,000(ZE—=
F HEMNARE786,0007T) °

HE-_Z--NFErN-_FT—ZF+=
B=Z+—BILFE A&EEHRER
ZEeTNEE SN EAEBEES
HMASAMARER B Z48E
SR VERERE 2 (S o

RKEFETE

EEERCRIKET S
REBTEABESSHRA LR - AEE2
S8 oy R B 7 AR T T L B 4 A ) E R A
FORMRBHFIGHEI([5xat81)) - B - A%
BAZAARERMNBBEIEN —TES
oAz et BIHR - T R Y R R
KEEBWMZEERSFEETAR

REE-_TE—NF+_A=+—HI*F
E - REBMXAHNEARENTEERA
AR¥A1,754,0000( ZF—=F : AR
1,150,0007T) o A& B0 4 & A Bz et
BMERRKRBEFNNREE -

16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. TREBEVMEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRBEMEERE -

The Group and the Company

AEERAEDT
2014 2013
—Z-mF —T—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREF T

Ginseng, at cost A2 IRARE 4,670 4,372

Vineyard, at cost BE - mAE 499 518

Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HB2EHEE 5,169 4,890

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16.

Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets:

TEBEMEE (F)
PEBEMEERBEYRE
The Group and the Company
AEBRERF
2014 2013
—E2-IF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Ginseng AZ

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEAEE 4,372 2,317

Additions during the year FANRE 298 2,055

Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HBZEAEE 4,670 4,372

Vineyard a8

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAE 518 533

Harvested grapes transferred to inventories BiRBEAEAEGFE (19) (15)

Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—RHZEAE 499 518
5,169 4,890

The carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued
at their original costs. These assets are in their early stage of
cultivation and preparation and active market prices are not
available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that the
original costs would approximate their fair values at this stage of
their development.

A2 RBENREERTAKRANE © %
FEERNBERERNY - RWELE
MmE - 2 EER/MBERAR] LR E
RZBERER 2 A TEBE -

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
CON =)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Transportation equipment
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment {52 #E Total
BF BERES EaRk R#&HE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
The Group and the KEEREAT
Company
Cost: PR -
At 1 January 2013 R-E—-=%—H—H 94,168 64,943 3,856 2,846 165,813
Additions R - 1,892 376 63 2,331
Disposals & - (432) (82) - (514)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-FA=1+—H 94,168 66,403 4,150 2,909 167,630
Transfer from construction £ 128 A (§1#£719)
in progress (note 19) 42,255 43,958 257 1,271 87,741
Additions LN - 1,866 1,999 29 3,894
Disposals & (26,487) (25,420) (781) (1,955) (54,643)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WFE+-A=1—H 109,936 86,807 5,625 2,254 204,622
Accumulated depreciation: Z:HTE :
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—-=F—H—H 16,792 37,780 1,967 1,812 58,351
Charge for the year (Note 9) 4 ] 8 (f77£9) 2,907 4,983 386 325 8,601
Written back on disposals & 1] - (180) (82) - (262)
Impairment (Note 9) WEH9) 1,409 48 - - 1,457
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-A=1+—H 21,108 42,631 2,271 2,187 68,147
Charge for the year (Note 9) E R 5 (f59) 3,864 6,611 537 477 11,489
Written back on disposals ~ H &% (4,927) (20,297) (781) (1,813) (27,818)
Impairment (Note 9) RE(H:29) 5,938 2,559 - - 8,497
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 25,983 31,504 2,027 801 60,315
Carrying amount: REME
At 31 December 2014 R_E-MF+-A=1+—H 83,953 55,303 3,598 1,453 144,307
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+_-A=1—H 73,060 23,772 1,879 772 99,483

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZETR)
18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. AT LtHiEE
The Group and
the Company
AEER
AT
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 RZZE—=Ff—A—8 -Z—=F+=A
and 31 December 2014 —t+—HAE_ZE—MmME+=-_A=+—H 19,785
Accumulated amortisation: HETHEE -
At 1 January 2013 N-_E—=F—H—H 1,543
Charge for the year (Note 9) FNZHE(HFE9) 453
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F+=H=+—H 1,996
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRNZEH ) 454
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MNF+-_A=+—H 2,450
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+_A=+—H 17,335
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-H=+—H 17,789
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZA=+—REmE 17,335 17,789
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEEHS (453) (454)
Portion classified as non-current assets NIERIERBEE 2 ED 16,882 17,335
The above medium-term land use rights are located in the PRC. VA A B 3 0 A AR B -
The Group recognised the amount as the carrying amount of $9ﬁ< Eﬁ&g’d;& /i:fﬁﬁﬁg Eﬁﬁéz%ﬁ
the relevant assets and will transfer this to profit or loss over the % WRRTHEEZARFHABE =
useful lives of the land leases. B -

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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PR AR YEE
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(AARBZETR)
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. EEIRE
The Group and the Company
AEBRAEAQT
2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
At 1 January w—A—H 145,834 66,777
Additions IR 8,688 79,057
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB EYEE « BE LG
(Note 17) (Hiet17) (87,741) -
At 31 December wWt+—_A=+—H 66,781 145,834
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMIBARMNKRE
The Company
VNN
2014 2013
—2-mE —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETIRE - BAE 25,500 25,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHIB AR ZIAE 24,660 24,660
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20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 were as

follows:—

Country of incorporation

REBATWRE (&)
MWZZ—NE+-/A=+—08  HELA
ST —

Percentage of

and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
AR R BEERSF
RENERR ZRERGOW
NCIECE EEERM Btk EEEK
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong The PRC, limited liability company 100% Trading of
Pharmacy Trading Company biochemical
Limited medicine
EMEBEREEZRKCHEREE PR BREEAR BEEH(bEm
NG
Jilin Province Medicinal Plants The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
Trading Company Limited ST E)
EMEMTEREMEEERRE HE - BREEAF]
EMEREEEHESRAT The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
e BREEAR] )

The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current liabilities in
the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

ENMBARREREARNRREEAR
RZRBAE  AEER 2B RIRER

fEI& -

EMEERREECERBRO AR AR

—ZT—YFFIR
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Group and the Company

21. BLEE
AEBERAAT

Purchased

in-process

Purchased research and
know-how and development

prescription assets
BB A B i )2 BEETY Total
E- ) WREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBFIT ARBEFIT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%F—H—H 66,185 5,800 71,985
Transfer i 3% 5,800 (5,800) -
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-RA=+—8 71,985 - 71,985
Additions N 1,190 - 1,190
Disposal & (5,200) - (5,200)
At 31 December 2014 R-ET—NF
+=ZA=+—H 67,975 - 67,975
Accumulated amortisation and Z iR EEERE !
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2013 N—E—=F—HA—H 56,130 - 56,130
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BGE S (KT#29) 4,626 - 4,626
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=-A=+—H 60,756 - 60,756
Amortisation charge (Note 9) B (KaF9) 3,815 - 3,815
Write back on disposal i & [l (5,200) - (5,200)
Impairment (Note 9) WA (HTEE9) 6,085 - 6,085
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—F
+=-—A=+—H 65,456 - 65,456
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—PF
+=-—A=+—H 2,519 - 2,519
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-A=+—H 11,229 - 11,229

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through
research and development cooperation with independent third
parties and were all acquired in cash.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future
economic benefits generated from these assets. An impairment
loss of RMB6,085,000 was recognised for the current year
(2013: Nil).

Purchased in-process research and development assets
represent costs incurred by third parties for the development
of new products, including cost of clinical experiments and
tests conducted. Due to the inherent uncertainties associated
with these purchased in-process research and development
projects, the associated expenditure incurred is particularly at
risk of impairment if the successful eventual commercialisation
of the projects becomes doubtful. The Directors have reviewed
the carrying amount of these purchased in-process research
and development assets and consider that there are no
indications of impairment as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

21.

BILEE(E)

A B R AD 7 ()

AR R BT R BB = A TERT S
RIAZBREMA -

FN - EBRBEZSEERREEZLE
ST AT AR R 885 2 BREE - &
FEMR R EEE A R6,085,0007T
(ZZ—=F M) -

ERETPHREERE = THETER
EEZER  BRESMETZERMAR
KA - AR ARBCBETHHERBEZA
ETEERE  WHEBRERIBEL
R EENEHERLEFERER
@ BEECRMACBETHIAEEEZR
EE TRAR-Z—HNFEFR-T—=F
TA=T—HABERBRETR

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARKEZT)
22. INVENTORIES 22. &
The Group and the Company
FEERAEQT
2014 2013
—E-0mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETF T
Raw materials R 13,293 8,411
Work in progress &M 14,184 14,886
Finished goods 2% 9,755 6,942
37,232 30,239
Less: Provision for obsolete and B BERFHETERE
slow-moving inventories (3,597) (4,658)
33,635 25,581

During the year ended 31 December 2014, reversal of provision
on obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounted to
RMB1,061,000 was made (2013: provision on obsolete and
slow-moving inventories amounted to RMB2,699,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories were written off (2013: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories which the provision were already made
in prior years, were written off (2013: Nil).

BHE-_Z—WNE+_A=+—HIFE -
BEH ARE1,061,00070 2 & 3 & % 85
FEBRELRE(—E—=F: FEARYK
2,699,0007T 2 B3 KB iHF E#E)

BE_FT-—HF+-_A=1+—HLFE -
WEEHBERRFHTFENME(ZF—=
FE) e

BE-Z-MF+-A=+—BILFE
A 48 94 2 50 DA BT 4 VR B RO BER B
W IE I (—F— =4 : /) -

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 23. A EMKEE

The Group and the Company

AEBERERQF
2014 2013
—E-0OF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Unlisted financial instruments, at cost JEFTMEBTE - kAR

At 1 January w—HA—H 30,000 -
Additions rig 160,000 103,200
Settlements e (160,000) (73,200)
At 31 December N+—_A=+—H 30,000 30,000
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23.

24.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the above unlisted financial
instruments represented the Group’s subscriptions of
30,000,000 units with RMB30,000,000 redeemable investment
products linked to highly liquid assets such as bonds and
deposits (2013: RMB30,000,000). These assets were measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period as
the directors were of the opinion that the fair value could not
be measured reliably due to wide range of unlisted structural
products. Details of fair value estimation of unlisted financial
instruments during the year are set out in Note 38(f) to the
financial statements.

The directors consider that there were no impairment provisions
on available-for-sale financial assets and the carrying values
approximate the fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the unlisted financial instruments.

23. AIRHEMBEE(R)

RZE—WNF+=—A=+—8 " ki3t
B 7 T A 5 748 & [# P 3R 88 930,000,000
BhA HARE30,000,0007T 5 7 B8 1E
BENES RFRE BB EDEME
m(ZZT—=% : AR®30,000,0007T) °
HERRERRZMBRAEERORETE -
HZEESRECELMEREESR &
EERBEQAFETRERNE - FRIE
B TENAFEGTFBEIRY B
wFMIFES8()

u}

BEERR RIT—ONFR-ZT—Z=F
TZA=+—8" TT,\Hj%EM“‘QEIE?ﬁ
EREEERAERE QN TERS -

RIEBH  FEEONSAEERRRIE
FHMBIANKREE -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24, EWE F IR
The Group The Company
AEE b /N
2013 2014 2013
—E-WFE —FT-=F ZZE-NOF —_T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT AR¥TET ARETT
Trade receivables TEWE FEER 238,278 129,834 250,453 147,737
Less: Provision for impairment o ORE R (8,082) (8,650) (4,636) (5,204)
Trade receivables — net eI E 5 BR
—FE 230,196 121,184 245,817 142,533

()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period of
180 days to its trade customers.

) AEEERRERETESEPFH180
BZEES-

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
—ZT—YFFIR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. ERE ZIRM (&)

(i) The movements in the provision for impairment for i)y FARFRRERENEZH(BEETE
doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and REEERIY )T
collective loss components, are as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH AKATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —_T-=—F ZE-NF —_T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR®BTRT AR®TT
At 1 January R—HA—H 8,650 7,972 5,204 5,204
Additional provision (Note 9) N (B a9) - 678 - -
Reversal (Note 6) E# (Kfi6) (568) - (568) -
At 31 December wnt+—_A=+—H 8,082 8,650 4,636 5,204
Provision for doubtful debts had been made for the REREIREEEM 2GR
estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of WEI4ZEEY - EFEC2XZ68F 1
goods. The provision was determined by the directors with RIEHETEBEESRE -
reference to past default experience.

(i) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the (i) WEZBZEHHRAKRERE S ERKX
invoice date and net of provision for impairment of trade WEREE  FEWRESFRINRED
receivables, is as follows: AT -

The Group The Company

TEE N

2014 20183 2014 2013
SE-mOFE —_T-=F ZB-NF _—_T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR®BTRT AR®ETT
Current BNER 60,334 38,299 60,937 38,839
31-90 days 31-90H 111,595 39,767 112,677 43,216
91-180 days 91-180H 35,068 22,023 40,218 29,058
More than 180 days Hi®180H 23,199 21,095 31,985 31,420
230,196 121,184 245,817 142,533
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

24. BWE Z IR (&)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither (iv) WEERKEBIRIERENEKE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as SEFREITHOT
follows:
The Group The Company
rEH VNN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —T-=-F ZE-—NF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR®BTRT AR®ETT
Neither past due nor impaired It 61 5 5l R (B 206,997 100,089 213,833 111,113
Less than 1 month past due w0 Hf DR —1{A A 8,474 5,233 11,514 12,358
1 to 3 months past due wE—=={fA 7,768 4,706 10,555 7,499
Over 3 months past due BHEAB=EA 7,296 4,430 9,915 7,858
230,535 114,458 245,817 138,828
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired s AR ERENE SRR
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no BREWEFPRFEH B ER °
recent history of default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired BHEEBRENERE SEREHRES
relate to a number of independent customers that have ZEUEPER  ZEEPHASE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past BEMEECLHRE - RBREBEL
experience, management believes that no impairment is B ERERE  ZSEKOER
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not B RERGEEHRITERERNY
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances &) - BESRDEARIEN 2EUE -
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not AEEVERZEEBRFTERTS
hold any collateral over these balances.
Included in trade receivables of the Company was a V) AREEWREBEZFIEFRABER-F
balance of RMB38,871,000 (2013: RMB40,959,000) due —NFF+A=+—HEKRNMBEA
from a subsidiary as at 31 December 2014. A2 iR AR M38,871,000L (=&
— =% : AR¥40,959,0007T) °
The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade vy EERE BREZSERZEBE

receivables approximates their fair value.

BEENTERE -
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HfttfEWFIE - ST RFENRE

PREPAYMENTS
The Group The Company
rEH FiN/NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NOF —T—= —E-mE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 = RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTRT AR®ETTT
Deposits and prepayments, net &< MFBTFIA © JF 58 693 1,749 693 1,749
Advances to staff, net MBI F5E 1,501 2,254 1,501 2,254
Other receivables, net HubfEU R IE - JF58 12,793 10,610 12,793 10,610
Bills receivables el EE 73,421 72,571 69,909 67,778
88,408 87,184 84,896 82,391

During the year, provision for impairment on deposits
and prepayments amounted to RMB94,000 was made
(2013: Reversal of provision for impairment amounted to
RMB989,000).

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, certain of the Group’s and
the Company’s advances to staff and other receivables were
determined to be impaired. The impaired receivables related
to staff and debtors that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently, the following
provisions for doubtful debts have been made.

FR - HEI 2 BN FIER AR Q94,000
TZRERE(ZT— =4 : BORERE
AFR#989,0007T) °

RZE—NER T —=F+_A=+—
A AXEERARARMEIAMNHETFTK
BREMEBRFBEREEADRE - 25
ERER BN FIEREER NSNS
TITAMEFAEHR  SBEETERBEIHDE
WRIBTEHA AT | - (L B B RERVE L A
TR -

The Group and The Group and
the Company the Company
Advanced to staff Other receivables
AEBRAAT REERAERQT
BEIER ot fE W K18

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —_T=F ZZE-—0NF _—_T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARKTT AR®BTRT ARETET
Gross amounts 18 5,217 6,811 15,757 10,941
Less: Provision for impairment & : Ji{E# & (8,716) (4,557) (2,964) (331)
Net amounts FRE 1,501 2,254 12,793 10,610
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

26.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group and the Company do not hold any collateral over the
above balances. The movement in the provisions for impairment
of advances to staff and other receivables during the year,

including both specific and collective loss components, is as
follows:

%.%@@W%E‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
IIE
e DS W NN R Sl ey S F =R R G
PG - FAME TN E M EKR A
BERENED(BEEEREREIED
D) UNNE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAQT
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
At 1 January R—HA—H 4,888 6,517
Addition provision (Note 9) BN (HaE9) 1,792 -
Reversal (Note 6) 15 (ffa6) = (1,629)
At 31 December Rt+_—_A=+—H 6,680 4,888

LOANS RECEIVABLES

26. EWWEFK

The Group and the Company

AEBERADT

2014 2013

—2-NF 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Loans receivables due within 1 year R—FAREHZERER 50,000 40,000
Interest receivable FEULH B, 2,457 1,957
Less: Provision for impairment BB (17,457) (6,367)
Loans receivables due within 1 year —net R—ERIN P2 EWER-F5E 35,000 36,590

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2013: Nil)
due from an independent third party is secured, bears
interest at 7.8% per annum (2013: Nil) and, following their
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months.

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB30,000,000 (2013:
RMB30,000,000) due from independent third parties
are unsecured, bears interest between 6.31%-10% per
annum (2013: 6.31%-10% per annum) and, following their
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months.

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2013:
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party
is unsecured, interest free (2013: Nil) and, following its
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months.

() ERBIYFEZTNEREBARE
10,000,000 (ZZE—=4% : &) &
BE  RFFR78EFE(ZT
—=F B )REHRBRENRERK T
EAWEE -

iy ERBIYEZTNEREBARE
30,000,000 (ZZE—=4: ARK
30,000,0007T) & EEE - HFF X
NT631Z10EE(ZFT =5 :
FRREI1E10E ) REREBBRE
R+ —EAARESE -

(i) ERBIE=FNEREBARYE
10,000,000t (= ZE—=% : AR
#10,000,0007T ) BEEKF « R B
(ZZE—=F: 8)REBEREARRK
R+ —EAREE -

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
ZE—HFFR
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26. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)  The ageing analysis of loans receivables that are neither
individually or collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

26. EWWER (&)

(iv) 0 EAE R E B R IERENERE

KAREE DT AT -

The Group and the Company

TEBRAEDT
2014 2013
—E2-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 38 B SR (E 30,000 35,000
Less than 1 year past due EHE R —F = 816
30,000 35,816

(v)  The movements in the specific provision for impairment for

doubtful debts during the year are as follows:

M FABERERERENZDN

T

The Group and the Company

AEERAEAQT
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBEFIT
At 1 January w—H—H 5,367 2,854
Provision for impairment (Note 9) TBERE (K E9) 12,090 2,513
At 31 December “n+—-—A=+—H 17,457 5,367

(v The Directors consider the carrying amount of loans

receivables approximates their fair value.
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27.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and
the Company and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The directors consider the
carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s
cash and bank balances denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB130,316,000 and RMB126,336,000 respectively (2013:
RMB70,359,000 and RMB62,251,000 respectively). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

27.

28.

REeERBEEEY

Re RBTEBOEFEARFATRE
R RREHEA=EARNT 2GR
TR - EERA  WEEEZREER
HATERE -

W_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H £&H
MARBIUAREFEZR S RIRTHE
#9 Bl A AR % 130,316,000 7T F1 A R #
126,336,000 C(ZZE—=F : 55l A A
R # 70,359,000 7T 1 A R % 62,251,000
o) e ARBTREEmREBARMEE - A
i AREREAREZINEETIERTE I
EEMTEETERTE  AEERESBE
RIEBETINEEB ZRITBAREERA
Hh e o

P B 5 BR K
T AERBERASBOENESERNE

BT -

The Group and the Company

AEERAEAQTH

2014 2013

—E—-MF —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETIT
Current BNER 4,339 3,015
31-90 days 31-90H 2,702 1,797
Over 90 days im0 H 6,518 6,018
13,559 10,830

The average credit period from the Group’s and the Company’s
trade creditors is 90 to 180 days.

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of
trade payables approximates their fair value.

AEERARRESGBEEAZFHEES
A90HZ180H -

ENESERTEBEREERESH
EERRENEZRR I EEERERF
ERR% -

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
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29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. RITIEE
The Group and the Company
AEERAEAQTH
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Long-term bank borrowings, REIRITEE RAFRER
wholly repayable within five years, IR
unsecured 4,000 4,000
Less: Amounts due within one year B IARBBEET
included under current liabilities AR—FNEENRE - -
Non-current portion FEmENFB 1D 4,000 4,000
Note: Htat -
(a) The Group’s and the Company’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: (@) REFRARBRITEEN T HARMEE
The Group and the Company
FEERAEAT
2014 2013
—2-mE ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARH AR
Within one year —FR = -
After one year but within two years R—FREMFA 4,000 -
After two years but within five years RREREREA = 4,000
4,000 4,000

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29. RITEE(HE)
Note: (continued) Bz - (&)
(b) The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the end of the reporting (b) RIBEHARRITEEERFIEMNT -
period are as follows:
The Group and the Company
FEERAEAT
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ZT-=F
Long-term bank borrowings, wholly repayable RERITEE  RAFREE - 3.0% per annum 3.0% per annum
within five years, unsecured KR FF|%E3.0E FF|R3.0E
(c)  As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of long-term bank © RZZ—NE+-A=+—H0 BRBEENFE
borrowings approximate its fair value, as the impact of discounting is not BAKX RERUTEENREAEEEAF(EME
significant. o
30. LOANS FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 30. BB ER

Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau
for the purpose of research and development activities of the
Company. The loans are unsecured and bear interest at one
year term saving interest rate promulgated by The People’s
Bank of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans are repayable by
instalments until July 2022 as follows:

BrZUBBEEEREAD R MHEE
oA  ZEERAEER  BEFHEAR
IRITHEMH — FHREEF EINO.3ERF
FETE - ZEBEREBRTIWARARZE
T ZF RIS EIEER ¢

The Group and the Company

AEERAEDF
2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Within one year —F R 1,317 682
After one year but within two years R—FEBEMRFA 635 635
After two years but within five years RNFBRERFR 1,907 1,907
After five years RAFE 971 1,606

4,830 4,830

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
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31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. EEZEWA
The Group and the Company
AEBERAEAQT

2014 2013

—E2-mF =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREF T

At 1 January R—HA—H 18,530 15,376
Arising from government grants KB BT B 6,000 5,040
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) REZANER(AH6) (3,086) (1,886)

At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 21,444 18,530
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HEEE 21,444 18,530
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARBEETD (3,086) (1,886)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 98 AIERE & &% 18,358 16,644
During the year ended 2014, the Group and the Company AEERARRARZZE—NFAESEEMN
received government grants of approximately RMB6,000,000 EUHANELRGEYRRH I HAEERE K
(2013: RMB5,040,000) from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and KRR BEEEFE - PHEZRE
Huinan County Finance Bureau in relation to support further #Bh A R #6,000,0007C ( =& — =4 :

research and development of the Group’s and the Company’s 5,040,0007T) °

intangible assets.
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32. EEMIBEAE
The movements during the year in the deferred tax liabilities are FRNREHEEENEHNOT -
as follows:

The Group and the Company

AEERAAT
2014 2013
—g-mE  —z-=%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

At 1 January Rn—HA— 338 61
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RiBZA( ﬁ%)/?ﬂ
(Note 10(a)) (Kfz£10() (99) 277
At 31 December RT-A=+—H 239 338
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date REFEBRRZELETIBEEERA IR
represented deferred tax arising from accelerated depreciation TEE S ZIELERIE ©
allowances.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
[ 28 R & i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT

Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each  EXEEAE0.107T

HANERL 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775

H shares of RMBO0.10 each FHREABEARE10T
HIHRR 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025

EHEBARIA(CRERAERAT 95
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(UAREZT)
34. RESERVES 34. f#E
The Group KEE
Exchange Reserve EZ#E
The Group’s exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange REFEE N FEBEREIINEER 2 BmE
differences arising from the translation of the financial HMSEAZPAAIINEZR - ZHEDRE
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in B E2Qq&ET  AEE S BFERIE o
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note
2(a).
The Company KA E]
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRRE ZEERGBREE REEF wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFTT AREETTT ARETTT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hiita) (Hiztb)
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F
—H—H 51,098 33,242 264,559 348,899
Profit for the year REEZEEF - - 79,816 79,816
Appropriation to statutory B EEF
surplus reserve BB - - - -
At 31 December 2013 ~ R-ZT— =4
+=-—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 344,375 428,715
Profit for the year REEHF - - 132,808 132,808
Appropriation to statutory N EIATE
surplus reserve BERHE - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—4F
+=-—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 477,183 561,523
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34. RESERVES (continued)
The Company (continued)
(a) Share premium

(b)

The Company’s share premium account represents the
premium arising from shares issued at a price in excess of
their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the Company’s articles of association, the Company and
its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate 10 percent of their
annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior years’
losses) to the statutory surplus reserve account. When
the balance of such reserve reaches 50 percent of these
entities’ share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares. However,
such statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25 percent of share capital after such
issuance.

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had
capital commitments contracted for but not provided for as
follows:

36.

34. f#iE (&)

AT ()
(a) Ki7iEE

(b)

RRBBA B A BB SR EE
ZEREFTZBRMELEZEE -

EER G
REFBERARERAQNGQAAE
B ARRREF KB ARNER
TFEEMEERZ - ABEH10%
NFEEETENELTRBHREERP
A EZBREEBENEREZSR
AIREAN 2 50% ¢ AA R A] B1TIRE
ERE-TSBERIE - EERABE
EoRERmAEFENBIEET
A% - AT - AIRBEITRIEATREL
RBARDERRIRAR25% °

35. EAEIE
KB - AEERAREETHERE
B EREEDT :

The Group and the Company

AEERADT
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Acquisition of intangible assets WigEp EE 1,750 2,940
Acquisition of construction in progress BAEREIRE 815 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAME - BEMEE = 1,140
2,565 4,080

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

36. BEALRS
FRBETEEREREZ EHMEAL

RHEBFERAATEEINME -

Hifl&

A ISR EE14 ©

TG B REE(CEERNBERAR
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided
by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings.
Adjusted capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity
less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2014 and 2013 was 1.5% and
1.9% respectively, calculated as follows:

37.

EXERER

EXEE
AEEEREAZTEARRREALHE
A]FF AR 2 B0 BE 1 1 T A 48 B R B 7k P 4R
HEZEMEREEEARESEEKRAR
MRE  EERRREEDR -

7S T 2 R B AR RIS R AR 6T
BB A AP BLS (8 Bk R 4
BB AHRIR B Y 47 L R ARBES R TR
ERBEALLBYMNBRREASED
% AR S B L E AR A
I B

AEEPED) - AEE U E L E R
PR AR B - EMERS 8 5B AT
BREL - EHOBHESOT - @B
AN 0 T PSR M 20 AR BB -

RERNBEEERBLLLE  NEEAEE
BT ARRBEELN - (FHHFOE
BREIHEEENRDALE

RZE—NEFER_TE—=F+_A=+—
AZEEBRBLESRA1.5%K%1.9% -
SFEWN

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETIT

Total debts eV
- Bank borrowings —RITIEE 4,000 4,000
- Loans from government authority — BT E R 4,830 4,830
8,830 8,830
Shareholders’ equity I R RE %5 606,317 473,532
Gearing ratio EEBERE 1.5% 1.9%
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables and loans
receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade, other and loans receivables. The Group
allows an average credit period of 180 days to its trade
customers. The amounts presented in the balance sheets
are net of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified loss
event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of
a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
loans receivables and cash and bank balances included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

38. MZERERE

Bt 7 R By B 2

REENEHEEAREZBYBER -
BREREERR RBERAR - FIXE
@ BEER - EREREAFERR
AREEL ERHERBITITESR T AIEY
MR EE AR o XA - ZERER S
AEBENPBEERREERMAEE
NEEREHAKERERRNBEELE -

(a) EFERRE
AEBZTEUKEEAR® MIE
ITHBUNEWRE SER - HafE
WHREARERER - AEE 212
ERBETEREEEKRE SRR
Hih U B A R EWE R - ANE
BREBSEFPREHCFEHIEER
B180H - EEREBEXRAMIIN SRR
BB EURIERRE® - AR
PHRMEEEGHMBEBAELSH A
B RE KB TENEE B
EELIRERE -

N6 B E AT A R BRI E —
F—HESRHHFABREANEE
[2\ B o ARSI E R R 7] A
BEEERETENTPIELHEE -

FEYE Z AR - E A EURIR - &
WER RERBITEBNEEE
ERERAMINERERSAEE
RAEAEENPBEEEAENRSE
EmkE -

(b) HEELEE
AEEETECEERARTES
BRNREERE  BEEHMRERS
BHREBHREFURNERRSF
K HEEFXERETRELAETE
BRKFERAEARNAESTEH
e AEENBEREHRERER
BESBFRLRENABERS
MAREEGSEHRSHEE - UE
NEEHEEHRBHESHL -

TERBINAEEPBABENGEE

W T AR BFFS  IRIERT
MARTRAZRE (BERBESLOHN
KRMBFHMNE - EREE
BHAEAENNE)ARAKREE R
RARIAIBEZAN R & F B HFE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. i EMREE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B RERER(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEELEE(E)
The Group EE
Total Within ~ More than ~ More than
contractual 1year 1yearbut 2yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5years

HEES it} —FR5 —F&E MERE
REE HERAH BRER MER RER ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRL AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®Tx

2014 —E-mE
Trade payables BB SR 13,559 13,559 13,559 - - -
Other payables Hib AR 105,348 105,348 105,348 - - -
Income tax payable  JEFTEH 12,255 12,255 12,255 - - -
Other tax payables  E it fE[FiIE 13,847 13,847 13,847 - - -
Dividend payable FERTER S 1,827 1,827 1,827 - - -
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,000 4,240 120 4,120 = =
Loans from BT BER
government
authority 4,830 5,582 1,646 764 2,153 1,019
155,666 156,658 148,602 4,884 2,153 1,019
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
PRk —FN —Fi&E MERE
FEE Renes REX A TER TEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARE®TT ARE®ETT AR&®TT ARE®ETR ARETR
2013 ZB-=F%
Trade payables BB SR 10,830 10,830 10,830 - - -
Other payables HiENRE 123,929 123,929 123,929 - - -
Income tax payable  JE{F{SH: 3,935 3,935 3,935 - - -
Other tax payables  EfrfE[FiIE 8,326 8,326 8,326 - - -
Dividend payable ~ FEfTf& 2 1,873 1,873 1,873 - - -
Bank borrowings  RTEE 4,000 4,360 120 120 4,120 -
Loans from BIKEER
government
authority 4,830 5,581 859 787 2,222 1,713

157,723 158,834 149,872 907 6,342 1,713
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. M EREE(H)

Financial risk management (continued) BERERER(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEELERE(E)
The Company VNN
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1year 1yearbut 2yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan  More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HEES i) —ER —F#E MERE
BEE RERLH REX MER IFER IFE#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
2014 —E-mE
Trade payables ARET = 13,559 13,559 13,559 = = =
Other payables H iR ZIB 103,712 103,712 103,712 - - -
Amounts due to JERTI B A A)
subsidiaries A 24,660 24,660 24,660 - - -
Income tax payable  JE{TFT/5H: 12,255 12,255 12,255 = = =
Other tax payables ~ E 778 13,221 13,221 13,221 - - -
Dividend payable B RS 1,827 1,827 1,827 - - -
Bank borrowings  $R{THEE 4,000 4,240 120 4,120 - -
Loans from B HBER
government
authority 4,830 5,582 1,646 764 2,153 1,019
178,064 179,056 171,000 4,884 2,153 1,019
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. MrIsE P EE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B RERER(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEELERE)
The Company (continued) AN (4E)
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BEESiE —FAN —Fi&E MEEE
FEE Renes RER A TER hFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR  ARETR ARBTRL ARBTL ARBTE ARSTI
2013 —B-=F%
Trade payables BT E SR 10,830 10,830 10,830 - - -
Other payables Hio TR 122,471 122,471 122,471 - - -
Amounts due to JERIHTB AR
subsidiaries FA 24,660 24,660 24,660 - - -
Income tax payable FERFT57: 3,935 3,935 3,935 - - -
Other tax payables ~ H{f ENHiE 7,864 7,864 7,864 - - -
Dividend payable &A% S 1,873 1,873 1,873 - - -
Bank borrowings  fR{TIEE 4,000 4,360 120 120 4,120 -
Loans from BT KEER
government
authority 4,830 5,581 859 787 2,222 1,713
180,463 181,574 172,612 907 6,342 1,713
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. Bi#&/E IR &E ()

Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out below:

MBEREE (&)
(c) FIFEmEBE

AEBOFEEAREBRERTR
BrREVBENEER - RFEBHN X
EENERSAEERHRSRE
MEERE  XEEGEENAEE
MEFREFIT

The Group and the Company

AKEBRAQT
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

BEA=E BERRFE
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Variable rate borrowings 25 EE
Loans from government I fiF RS & X

authority 3.66% 4,830 3.28% 4,830
Bank borrowings RITEE 3% 4,000 3% 4,000

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
and the Company’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 29
and 30 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2014, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by RMB75,000 (2013: RMB75,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

REBERARRBHEEF R KIER
B B S 3R R MY 7529 FNB0 1 55 ©

R-Z—mE+-_A=+—A8 " &
REMBEHNE  MERAE EFH
3 N BE1001EE DT - (At EH A%
B F 1% 0% R R AR B i ARk > sk 48 0
ARMEET75,0000(ZFE—=F : AR
#75,0007T ) °

FREBE ST BERFIEE R G
HEAMEE  BEHARZAN
EEFERREEE - EHR TR
100EREAERBHBRE T —
EAIEBRFE TR A R
BT -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. Bi#E k&R (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B RARERE (&)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥Ep
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of AEBTENPRHLEER - K6
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have PRGUNREEE - B ERE
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in MEXZEHmMEENERNRR

foreign currency exchange rates.

(e) Price risk (e) 1ESEE
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or 7N 52 [ A A T ST A B R B AR AR
commodity price risk. REmErRRERE

(f) Fair value measurement (f) A FEIE
The following table presents the carrying value of TREINREFRPRIZE BT IE®
financial instruments measured at fair value at the HEEREIBHFAFEAEMNRER
end of the reporting period across the three levels of FEERFIE 2 =ZEERN A TE
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair FFEemTEZREE - A FES
value measurement. The level into which a fair value EFEDZERTIZ2RBUN T HER
measurement is classified is determined with reference iR ABSEZIBEREERE
to the observability and significance of inputs used in the EEWET -

valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only o
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2 o
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using o
significant unobservable inputs.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s and the
Company’s assets that are measured at fair value at 31

December 2014.

38. M EREE(H)

815 LR I ()
AF(E# ()
TREIAEERARAR-E
—mF+=f=+—RRATE
EWEE -

Fair Value Measurement
AV ENE

Level 3 Total
K st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR¥TT

Assets
Available-for-sale
financial assets

30,000 30,000

Total assets

Carrying
amount
BREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
AEHE
M5 EE 30,000
BERE 30,000

30,000 30,000

The following table presents the Group’s and the
Company’s assets that are measured at fair value at 31

December 2013.

TREFARERARARE
—=F+ZA=+—ARATEN
BMAE -

Fair Value Measurement
NFEEE &

Level 3 Total
el HET
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®ETF T ARETTT

Assets
Available-for-sale
financial assets

30,000 30,000

Total assets

Carrying
amount
FREE
RMB’000
AREFIT
BE
A HE
g EE 30,000
BERE 30,000

30,000 30,000

EMEERREECERBRO AR AR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (continued)
The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These financial assets are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the financial assets is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial assets
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

° The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial assets.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial
assets for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. BfiEERE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B RERERE(E)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) NFEE ()
2014 2013
—E-mF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
Unlisted structured financial products ELTEBEMESR AE¥F AREF T
Opening balance FY 30,000 -
Additions g 160,000 103,200
Settlements HE (160,662) (73,461)
Gains recognised in profit or loss RiBm R e 662 261
Closing balance FRES 30,000 30,000
Total gains for the year FRMREEEE -
including in profit or loss for BIET AmE
assets held at the end of the HRIBFER
reporting period EEMNER 662 261

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. iIBEERUBABRERE

40.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY THBE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2014 and 2013
may be categorised as follows:

AEER_ZE—NFER-_FT—=F+=A
=t HFERNUEEEMTBEEESN
BRTEE AL NPTl F A D48 ¢

2014 2013
=EF-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

Financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Loans and receivables (including cash
and bank balances)

MKEE
A ETFEEE 30,000 30,000
BRI s

(BRRASRIRTTES) 483,920 315,317

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

MBAE
B BE IR B AR NS (B
177,110 176,253

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. ZF#tM&®{=

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015.

EEeN _T-RAF=ZA=+HERNE
FETI B W E B IRE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

108

TEHBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements is set out below.

Operating Results

RERE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-RALEE

AEERZECTIBRERZY BT RE 2 BERE
MREREEE  BERREREHIINT -

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—Z-|mF —E2-=f -2 2 —Z-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETTT
Turnover %%%ﬁ 601,715 457,746 353,247 274,294 200,630
Cost of sales HERR (115,213) (84,689) (63,593) (44,207) (42,658)
Gross profit EF 486,502 373,057 289,654 230,087 157,972
Other income and net gains Htp A R &3
or losses Eﬂ%%%ﬁ 18,309 14,877 9,977 6,171 6,101
Distribution and selling costs AEREERY (276,949) (255,319) (203,658) (148,464) (94,306)
Administrative expenses THHAX (67,901) (37,347) (26,808) (25,937) (26,307)
Profit from operations gamil 159,961 95,268 69,165 61,857 43,460
Finance costs BEKA (297) (659) (296) (253) (178
Profit before income tax TArE A 159,664 94,609 68,869 61,604 43,282
Income tax expense RS (26,879) (15,335) (10,115) (10,711) (7,391)
Profit for the year attributable to  ERARAFEE A
owners of the Company FEEET 132,785 79,274 58,754 50,893 35,891
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
As at 31 December
W+=ZA=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
L 2= -2 —E——F —Z-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Bearer biological assets TRBENEE 5,169 4,890 2,850 2,615 2,504
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 144,307 99,483 107,462 82,728 55,330
Prepared lease payments ANLTIES 16,882 17,335 17,789 2,008 2,223
Construction in progress EEIR 66,781 145,834 66,777 32,712 28,959
Intangible assets EWEAE \ 2,519 11,229 15,855 18,714 24,135
Deposit for acquisition of land use It + {5 BiEix 4
rights - - - 10,000 10,000
Non-current other receivables, JERED Lt JE U B -
deposits and prepayments HES S - - - 2,100 5,100
Current assets EEEE 548,008 371,352 325,319 306,850 251,421
Current liabilities nEaE (151,239) (151,461) (121,886) (109,407) (81,048)
Non-current liabilities e (26,110) (25,130) (19,908) (5,908) (7,010)
Net assets BERE 606,317 473,532 394,258 342,507 291,614
Share capital %ZIS 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves & 550,292 417,507 338,233 286,482 235,589
Total equity e T ] 606,317 473,532 394,258 342,507 291,614
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